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Every year I sing the praises of The Kensington Society, as any-
one in touch with the amenity world and aware of the heavy and
disinterested work that falls upon those devoted to that Society,
cannot fail to do. Never for a moment does the constant conflict
cease between the educated few who wish to preserve, and the
avaricious multitude who wish to destroy. Occasionally a gleam of
light illuminates the battlefield, and we who ûght in it get the
impression that the forces of civilisation have made a slow and
unspectacular increase during recent years. The London County
Council, too, can usually be counted as certain supporters of our
side. Occasionally, too, small success comes our ìway. The proposal
to pull down Plane Tree House in Duchess of Bedford Walk, and
erect in its place a tower block of flats at the entrance to Holland
Park, has been abandoned, and the developers who wished to build
a.high block of flats on the site of 76, Bedford Gardens have had to
modify their plan considerably. It would be easy enough to give you
an optimistic picture of the activities of our Society. On the social
side the success of the visits paid; the prize presented for a school
essay on Kensington; the þublication of a booklet on the Phillimore
Estate; the assistance given to Barclays Bank for their decorative
scenes of old Kensington. But underneath these evidences of gracious
life the fierce contention between us and the "developers", helped as

they often are by the Kensington Borough Council, has become a
perpetual feature of communal life. In spite of all our efforts; and
with the support of The Fine Art Commission; we failed to prevent
the Borough Council from erecting their abominable concrete lamp
standards. Our struggle to prevent the "development" in the Melbury
Road area, strongly supported as we wele by the London County
Council has now received the decision of the Minister, The wording
is a masterpiece of official verbiage. A careful reader will discover
that the Minister has not confirmed the Preservation Order and yet
is arranging for the houses in the Melbury Road area to be put on
the list of houses to be preserved under Section 30 of. the l94l
Planning Act. So strange a contradiction creates no confidence that
Leighton House is safe.

No one can say that the life of the Kensington Society is a bed of
roses, but those who work for it, including its capable and energetic
Secretary, know that upon our efforts depend the possibility of a
civilised life.

(Sgd.) Esher,
Presìdent.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The,Annual General Meeting of the Society was held at the
Town Éall, Kensington, on Decãmber 5th, 196ó, with Mrs. Mary
Stocks, Vice-President of the Society, in the Chair.

The Minutes of the last Annual General Meeting, previously
approved by the Executive Committee, were taken as read and
signed by the Chairman.

Dr. Stephen Pasmore, Chairman of the Executive Committee,
moved the adoption of the Report and Accounts for 1959-60, and
Mr. Norman-Butler, Hon. Treasurer, seconded the motion. Both
Report and Accounts were unanimously adopted.

The re-election of the Officers of the Society and the Executive
Committee was moved by Miss Blackie and seconded by Miss White
and carried unanimously.

The re-election of Messrs. Wright, Stevens and Lloyd as Hon.
Auditors, moved by Mr. Keon Hughes and seconded by Mrs. Wilson,
was also carried unanimously

Proceedings ended with a vote of thanks to the Secretary.

The Meeting was followed by a lecture by Mr. Richard Edmonds,
Chairman of the London County Council Planning Committee,
entitled "London Skyline". An exhibition of photographs, maps and
plans was provided by the London County Council.

Dr. H. Stephen Pasmore

At the first Executive Committee Meeting following the Annual
General Meeting the Committee learned with great regret that Dr.
Pasmore did not wish to stand for re-election as Chairman of the
Committee.

Dr. Pasmore had served as Chairman of the Society since its
foundation and undei his Chairmanship the Society has grown from
strength to strength. The Committee wishes to place on record their
appreciation of the excellent work Dr. Pasmore has done for tle
Society.

Dr. Pasmore proposed that Mr. H. Gandell should be elected
Chairman for the coming year. The proposal was seconded by Mrs.
G. Christiansen and carried unanimously

Mr. Hugh Shillito
In July a letter was received from Mr. Shillito who, owing to

pressure of other commitments, found that he would be unable to
continue serving on the Committee.

The Committee accepted his resignation with regret and ex-
pressed its gratitude for the work he had done.
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A SELECTION OF CASES DEALT WITH

Melbury Road Area
The London County Council wished to make a Building Pre-

servation order on Nos. 6, 8, 9, 11, 15 and 17, Melbury Road, and
on Leighton House, 12, Holland Park Road.

The Kensington Borough Council and the Holland Park and
Parways Estates opposed the order and as a result of these objec-
tions a Public Inquiry was held at the Kensington Town Hall on
April 19th and 20th.

A Report of the proceedings will be found on page 18. Mr.
Ashley Barkers' evidence, which covers the history of the houses
concerned, has been given, for obvious reasons, in full detail.

The London County Council were strongly supported by the
Kensington Society. Victorian Society, London Society, The Royal
Academy of Arts and many local residents.

There is restricting its use for
cultural and ed by the Kensington
Borough Co Boróugh Council will
be free to sell Leighton House, if it so wishes. The intention of the
present Council is no guarantee that future Councils will not wish
to sell Leighton House and it is unlikely that this valuable and large
site would be bought for any reason other than to demolish and
redevelop the area. It was for this reason that the Kensington Society
welcomed the proposed Preservation Order. As we go to Press we
Iearn with very much regret that the Minister has decíded NOT to
confirm the Order.

The Society was represented by Council and Sir Albert
Richardson gave evidence on the merits of the houses for the
Society. Mr. Timothy Phillips, an artist and a member of the Society,
also gave evidence.

The Society wishes to record its grateful thanks and appreciation
to Mr. Ernle Money, Barrister-at-Law, who so ably conducted the
Society's case at the Public Inquiry without fee; our thanks are also
due to Professor Sir Albert Richardson and Mr. Timothy Phillips
who gave evidence at the Inquiry and to Mr. Mark Haymon who
prepared the Brief for the Case.

The Redevelopment of Site Nos.2-34 Addison Road
An app site by building 17 three-storey

houses and k of 40 flats was refused by the
London Co' 

The owners of the site, the Holland Park Estates, and the building
contractors appealed against the refusal of the London County
Council to give planning permission for the development and a
Public Inquiry was held on April 21st and 22nd.

The Kensington Society supported the London County Council
and submitted a statement setting out the Society's objections.
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The principal objection was that the ll-storey block would be
unduly dominant and out of scale and character with surrounding
properties. The pro h. Three schemes
were shown to the ty Council which
would achieve a de with no building
higher than 50 feet.

Many residents from the Addison Road area attended the Inquiry
and strongly voiced their objections.

We regret to report that permission has now been granted by the
Minister of Housing and Local Government for this development.

Kensington High Street Redevelopment
The pro

site of the o
redevelopm
have, we understand, been postponed.

Plane Tree House, Duchess of Bedford Walk
Planning permission has been sought for the building of a

180 feet tower block on this site.
We accept the fact that London must build upwards. But if we

care at all for the look of London we must guard against buildings
or plans for buildings which tend to be out of harmony with their
immediate surroundings. This would be the case in the plan to
demolish Plane Tree House and erect on its site a tower block of
flats 180 feet high at the eastern entrance to Holland Park.

To demolish this handsome-looking building, with its splendid
trees and shrubs, would be bad enough; to erect in its place a
l4-storey block.of flats in so prominent a position would be
monstrous.

A building of this height would inevitably dominate the view at
both east and south entrances to the park and would, therefore, in
the opinion of the Society, be wholly undesirable on aesthetic
grounds. The Secretary \ryrote to the London County Council, putting
forward objections on behalf of the Society.

We now understand that the application for the erection of a tall
block of flats on this site has been withdrawn.

No.'Ì6 Bedford Gardens
A letter has been receive ley, thanking

the Society fo¡ the support t against thé
proposed development of the

The house, No. 76, Bedford Gardens, was acquired by a ñrm of
developers who sought planning permission to demolish the house
and build on the site a high block of 17 flats.

ro i'"it å:iï'li:
de andhaveagreed
to

I

Street Lighting
At tle bggin¡ing of this year the third phase of the Kensington

Stregt Lighling Improvement Scheme came up for consideration by
the Council.

On]y a few days before the Council Meeting on February 7th,
1961, it was learnt that the Council would have before it a rècom-
mendation from its Works Committee that certain streets shor¡ld
have concrete lamp standards. Most of these streets were on the
Society's list of streets for which preferential treatment had been
urged: -Ansdell Terrace, Bedford Gardens, Brunswick Gardens,

Victoria Grove, Victoria Road.
The Secretary immediately informed each resident in the streets
concerned. This was done to enable residents to make known their
views to the Council before the recommendation was voted on at

Committee.
The Council agreed that the following list of 26 streets were

streets where existing lamp standards will be converted to take a
fluorescent ring: -Addison Avenue, Albert Place, Alexander Place, Aubrev

Boad, Aubrey Walk, Brompton Square, Cambridge phcé,
Campden Hill Square, Clareville Grove, Cornwall Mews
South (western leg), Douro Place, Earls Terrace, Edwardes
Square, Edwardes Place
end), Hereford Square,
Hyde Park Gate Mews
North Terrace, Selwood

SomE-of these streets were not on the list drawn up bv the Roval
Fine Art Commission and the Kensington Society. Itìs ciear that íhe
selection of streets for the modern or old lamps has been an entirely
arbitrary one.

The Ke!._sington Society received over 300 letters protesting
against the Council's proposals.

The South.Kensington Liberals joined the Kensington Society in
protesting against the scheme.

The Historic Buildings Secrgt.ary of the National Trust sup-
ported the protest made by the Eldon Road residents.

9



A housewife in Kensington Church Walk told a "Kensington
Post" reporter: "It seems a shame to change the lights as it will
spoil the whole atmosphere of this little by-way. Everybody around
here feels exactly the same." It was the same story in Canning Place
and many other streets.

A resident, a member of the Kensington Society, in Callcott
Street delivered a circular and a postcard to over 400 houses in
Bedford Gardens, Campden Street, Peel Street, Edge Street, Ken-
sington Place, Hillgate Place, Hillgate Street, Jameson Street, Farmer
Street, Callcott Street, Farm Place and Uxbridge Street.

This circular read as follows: - ll, Callcott Street,
London, W.8.

March 25th, 1961.
Dear Sir or Madam,

You probably know that the Kensington Borough Council is
about to embark on the third stage of a scheme for reorganising the
street lighting throughout the Borough.

The Council, through its Works Committee, sought the advice
of the Royal Fine Art Commission on this matter. The Commission
recommended that certain streets of special character or architec-
tural merit should retain their existing lamps, or should have the
original rectangular lanterns restored to the existing lamp-posts,
adapted to take an improved form of fluorescent ring lighting.
Among those recommended for such treatment are streets in the
neighbourhood between Church Street and Campden Hill.

The Fine Art Commission's view was that other streets should, if
possible, have an upright metal standard with a lantern-type head,
such as qan be seen in many Chelsea streets (e.g., Markham Square).
If, however, the Kensington Borough Council preferred concrete
posts for those streets, the Commission did not object to a small
concrete lamp-post with horizontal reflector of a type approved by
the Council of Industrial Design.

Thus the concrete type is the last of the Commission's pre-
ferences and, in their view, is not suitable for this particular neigh-
bourhood. This is also the strong recommendation of the Kensington
Socíety.

On February 7th, fhe Council met to vote on the recommenda-
tions of its Works Committee on the matter. It unanimously passed
a Resolution under which the advice of the Fine Art Commission in
regard to this neighbourhood and some ten other streets in the
borough is þored. These streets are to have their existing lamps
replaced by dark grey concrete lamp-standards with a horizontal
arm and reflector.

Nevertheless, the Council has selected approximately 25 streets
which are to retain their lamps or have the original old lanterns
replaced. Some of these streets are dark and composed of large late
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Victorian or Edwardian houses, where the extra height of the concrete
posts would, no doubt, be an advantage and where they would
certainly not look out of proportion. It is clear that the selection of
streets for the modern or old lamps has been an entirely arbitrary one.

The proposed concrete columns are slate grey in colour, of

The height from ground level to the lantern of almost all the
lamp-standards in the smaller streets here is approximately 12 ft. 6 in.

-about 
1 ft. 6 in. below the level of the bedroom window-sills. The

height to the top of the bedroom windows is approximately 19 ft.
Thus it is clear that the new lamps will be level with the middle

of the bedroom windows.
This is not, of course, true of streets with taller lamp-posts such

as Kensington Place, but the houses here are also rather taller.
e posts and
at the East
for they are
to note that

the houses in Pembridge Square are very large mansions, which bear
no comparison with the houses in these streets. It is also in the
Borough of Paddington. It might have been hoped that Kensington
would do better than Paddington or Chelsea.

On behalf of residents of Callcott Street and many other neigh-
bouring stre¿ts, I sent in a petition on February 5th, signed by
approximately 50 people and the residents of Callcott Street have
recently submitted a second petition. In the meantime, a neighbour
of mine, Mr. IW. S. Mitchell, and I are doing all we can to bring the
Council to include this neighbourhood among those strects which
are to retain the old lanterns.

mission and the Kensington Society; moreover, they stated that the
Commission has approved of concrete lamp standards for these
streets, which as I have stated is not true. They also say that, in their
experience, people get used to the concrete pósts; no ãoubt'one has
to become accustomed to many unpleasant things but it seems to me
a poor argument in this case, when a perfectly reasonable alternative
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The Council have said they would find too much difficulty in
obtaining the lanterns but we have informed them that a large supply
of these is available from another borough at f3 a piece.

The main points of our argument are as follows:-
l. It is a waste of ratepayers' money to put up new concrete

posts in these streets. If any improvement is needed it is
cheaper to buy old lanterns and adapt the element to give

uld be more than sufficient in these
should save money urgently needed
borough.

2. The concrete lamp-posts will be out of proportion in both size
and style with these smaller houses. They are of a kind
suitable for suburban by-roads with modern houses set back
from the road.

3. will cause the
s, thus giving

4. This is an old pa ular charm and
character; it is es Council should
be determined to this way.

We think it very important that we should have the support of as
many people as possible in our dealings with the Couhõil and I

as soon as
views duly
numerical

Yours sincerely,
(Sgd.) Angus Stirling.

In a letter to the Society, t within 4g hours
o_{ se¡rding out his circular he from 130 people,
all of whom were against the

Letters of protest are still being received, and only recently a
photostat copy of the petition and signatures of the Pelhâm Cresónt
residents was sent to the Society.

- -Tþ" many letters. gly the ratepayers
feel about the Counci õi tne Kensînlton
Society and the Royal

Kensington Square
The owners of No.

planning permission to
office use, over the garde
strongly protested and
mlsslon.

Roads through Kensington
The Society is taking a firm line in opposing re-fouting of heavy

traffic through residential areas in the borough.
Discussions have been going on about the proposed intersection

of a new by-pass at Royal Crescent and Clarendon Road.
Letters have been sent to the Minister of Transport and the

London County Council, protesting at any proposal to make per-
manent one-way streets of Earls Court Road and Warwick Gardens,
and we have expressed our concern about heavy traffic using such
residential roads as Addison Road.

Application was made to open a club at 77, Warwick Road, the
Society supported residents in successfully opposing the application.

Plaques
The Society supported a proposal by a member that a plaque

should be placed on No. 56, Holland Street, to commemorate Sir
Charles Stanford's residence there from 1893 to 1917.

A plaque has recently been affixed to No. 21, Brompton Square,
the home of Francis Place, the political reformer from 1833 to 1851.

The Society will be pleased to receive suggestions from members
for the erection of plaques to notable past-residents.
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KENSINGTON SOCIETY NOTES

Kensington Society announces the publication of
The Phillimore Estate

by
\ü. G. ConrrEr.o, M.A.(Cantab.)

Price Five Shillings.
Distributed for the Society by The Thackeray Book Shop, Thackeray

Street, Kensington, W.8.

Mr. Corfield has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Society since its foundation and has resided on Campden Hill
for over 30 years.

Mr. Corfleld became fascinated with the history of the Campden
Hill area from Saxon times and research became an enthusiastic
hobby. The history of the Phillimore Estate is one of several detailed
manuscripts he has written over a period of years on the area
between Notting Hill Gate and Kensington High Street.

The booklet gives a description of the Phillimore Estate with its
various historic houses and their occupants. It should prove of
absorbing interest and appeal to all lovers of Kensington.

The booklet which constitutes a valuable contribution to our
local history is sponsored by the Kensington Society, one of whose
aims is to stimulate interest in the history of the Royal Borough.

The Society wishes to express its grateful thanks to Sir Oliver
Scott, of the Thackeray Book Shop, for undertaking the distribution
of the work.

Christmas Card
There are a number of Christmas cards left from last year taken

from a water colour by T. Hosmer Shepherd 1852, óf Onslow
Square, price 4d each.

The new Christmas card is a reproduction of Ghiberti's Virgin
and Child, Washington National Gallery of Art, price of cãrd
6d. each.

The Secretary would welcome volunteers for selling Christmas
cards.

Holland Park School Prize
This year the prize was won by Richard Blackburn with an

essay entitled " A Kensington Economist."
The essay is plinted in full on pages 40, 4l and42of this Report.
The Society offers its congratulations to the winner.

Please note that subscriptions for the year 196l-62 were due on
October lst.

Extra copies of the Annual Report can be obtained from the
Hon. Secretary, price 2s.

t4

Will members taking part in visits please make a point of being
on time to avoid keeping the host and party waiting.

Visits involving payment must be paid for at the time of booking.
No payments can be refunded, but tickets may be passed on to a
non-member. Members wishing to cancel any visit previously
booked, where tickets are issued and the numbers limited, should
advise the Hon. Secretary as soon as possible, as other members may
be on the waiting list.

It would be appreciated if letters requiring an answer were accom-
panied by a stamped addressed envelope.

- Th" Society is affiliated to the London Society, the Metropolitan
Parks and Gardens Association and the Noise Abatement Sbciety.

Noise Abatement Society

Members can also apply for personal membership to the Hon.
Secretary, Noise Abatement Society, 6, Old Bond St., London, W.l.

Mr. Gorden Roe offered to present to the Society Walter Crane's
design for the Order of the White Elephant used for the Shrove-tide
revels of the Art-Workers Guild at Cliffords Inn. The offer had to be
refused with regret because the Society has no permanent premises
in which such a treasure could be housed.

demolition of the hotel.

Trees
All reports schemes involving

the destruction ated by Aldermañ
F. Carter, Secr

An appreciation has been received from Mr. W. H. Tregashes,
Manager of Barclays Bank, Notting Hill Gate, for the help given by
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the Society in suggesting various scenes of old Kensington for
decorative work at their new bank.

Central Council of Civic Societies
The Society was founded in 1939 for the following purposes: -To enable Civic Societies to confer on matters of commoninterest.
To encourage the formation of new Civic Societies.
To enable Civic Societies to take concerted action as a repre-

sentative national body.
To stimulate public interest in the improvement of urban

amenities.
The Society has been developed by Miss Bright Ashford, its

Honorary Secretary since 1939, and between 50 and 60 new
societies have been formed throughout the country, entirely due to
her unflagging zeal and enthusiasm.

Miss Bright Ashfìrrd was present at the first meeting called to
discuss the formation of a Kensington Society. The advice and help
which she has given us has been of inestimable value, we would like
to convey our appreciation to Miss Bright Ashford for this and for the
valuable pioneer work which she has done for societies throughout
the country.

Members are reminded of the aims of the Society and are urged
to inform the Secretary as soon as possible if they hear any plans or
proposals, which conflict with the oibjects of the Society.

We regret to report the death of the following members, who
were founder members of the Society:

Mr. H. Cattell.
Miss Catherine Ouless.
Mrs. A. H. Langdon.
Miss P. Vaughan Morgan.

ACTIVITIES OF THE SOCIETY

During the past year visits have been made to the following
places of interest: -
Royal Academy of Arts. Members were met by Sir Albert Richard-

son, P.P.R.A., who kindly conducted members over parts of the
Academy not open to the public.

St. John's Lutheran Church, Kensington, by permission of Dr. T.
Paul, who very kindly gave members tea.

Royal Society of Arts.
Royal Horticultural Society's Garden, Wisley.
Armenian Church, Kensington.
Ken Wood, Cromwell House, Hampstead Garden Suburb, and

Lutyens Civic Centre. Sir Albert Richardson, P.P.R.A., kindly
conducted the party.
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Church of Our Lady of Mount Carmel, Kensington.
Flouses of Parliament, with tea on the Terrace.
No. 18, Kensington Square, with tea in the garden.
Cabinet War Room. Four visits were arranged to the War Room as

only ten can be admitted at one time.
Osterley Park House, Osterley.
Courage and Barclay's Anchor Brewery, by kind permission of the

Directors, who invited members to tea.
No. 8, Addison Road, Kensington.
College of Arms.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our hosts and
hostesses and all those who have helped tb make our visits such a
success.

FUTURE ARRANGEMENTS
November 29th at 8 p.m., Town Hall, Ke,nsington High Street,

ry.8_._A lecture by Mr. J. P. Brook-Little entitled:-"The Splendour
of Heraldry". Chairman: Mr. H. Gandell. Mr. Brook-Little is
Bluemantle Pursuivant, Chairman of the Council and a Fellow of
Heraldry Society and Editor of the Coat of Arms. The lecture will
be illustrated with slides.

December 5th at 6 p.m. at
Hill Road, W.8. The Annual
Mary Stocks. The meeting will
by Mr. Michael Robbins entitle

__- leþryary 6th at_8 p.m. ngton High Street,
y.8.4lecture.by Mr. Wi Tãwn pñnning in
History." The lecture will s. Chairman: ñdr.
R. T. D. Wilmot. Mr. Collier is a Senior fnvestigator of Historic
Buildings for the Ministry of Housing and Local dovernment.

March 6th at 8 p.m. at the Town Hall, Kensineton Hish Street_
W.9,4leclure by_Mr. L. W. Lane, Chief planniñg Officä L.C.C:
entitled: "Town Planning Today." Chairman: Lad-y pepler.

_ March 24! gt 3 p.m. A visit to Baden-powell House, eueens
Gate, S.W.7. Tickets are required.
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Report of the Proceedings at a

PUBLTC INQLIRY
into the future of the Melbury Road Area

held at Kensington Town Hall

on April 19th and 20th,1961.

and,17, Melbury Road.
The order wâs opposed by the Kensington Borough Council and

first witness.
Mn. Bnl¡N Asnr,Bv Bmrnn, an Associate of the Royal Institute

of British Architects, holder of the Honours Diploma of the Archi-
tectural Association, and Senior Assistant in the Historic Buildings
Section of the Architect's Department of the London County
Council, said:-

The houses numbered 9 and 11, Melbury Road, Kensington,
are included in the Statutory List of Buildings of architectural or
historic interest for the Borough of Kensington prepared under
Section 30 of the Town and Country Planning Act, 1947.

The houses numbered 6, 8, 15 and 17, Melbury Road and
No. 12, Holland Park Road, having been included in a Supple-

purpose was being prepared.
At that time the Council had under consideration a planning

application from Messrs. Stone, Toms and Partners relating to
tñé sites of No. 6, Melbury Road and No. 14, Holland Park
Road and envisaging the demolition of both of these buildings.

On May l6th, 1960, the of the
London County Council det g Pre-
servation Order on all of the 11, 15

and 17, Melbury Road as well as on number 12, Holland Park
Road (also known as Leighton House) and the planning applica-
tion was subsequently refused, both for this and other reasons.

t8

The laying out of Melbury Road took place in the early
1870's on part of a small farm known as Little Holland House
which had been added to the Holland properties in 1774. The
eastern part of the road followed approximately the line of
Holland Lane which led to the farmhouse and on to the stables
of Holland House itself. had already been in
existence for some time arly l9th century St.
Mary Abbotts Terrace, High Street, and it
retained much of this character on its south side until very
recently.

The farmhouse had passed in 1837 to Lord Holland's aunt,
Caroline Fox, and then to Henry Fox, later Lord llchester.
Through the agency of the artist George Frederick rilatts, a
personal friend of Lord and Lady Ilchester, the house was let in
1850 on a twenty-one-year lease to Henry Thoby Princep, with
whom W-atts then went to live.

In 1865, Princep's son, Valentine, a painter of some repute
and a Royal Academician, built himself a house on the north
side of Holland Park Road to the design of Philip \ilebb: this
survives as No. 14, but has been so much altered that it is not
included in the present Order. The garden of the house ran
through to the new Melbury Road and after the elder Princep's
lease of Little Holland House fell in, Watts took over the northern
half of this site and built himself a house to the design of
Frederick Pepys Cockerell, now No. 6, Melbury Road, in which
he lived and worked from 1876 until shortly before his death
in 1904.

In the meantime, another artist had come to live in Holland
Park Road. This was Frederick Leþhton, later to be President
of the Royal Academy, to be created a knight, a baronet and, one
day before his death, to be raised to the peerage. In 1866, he
built a house immediately to the east of Valentine Princep's. His
architect was George Aitchison and the building that resulted
from their combined efforts was in some ways the most remark-
able of the many wealthy artists' homes to be created in London
in the second half of the l9th century. The artist lived and worked
there until his death on January 25th,1896.

In 1875, while Watt's house was building, William Burges,
the well-known architect, bought for his own occupation the
lease of a plot of
on to Holland
structure of his
internal decorati
a grøt deal of which still survives in the house. From the stand-
point of architectural quality, as such, the house is probably the
most important in the whole group.

Burges was followed in Melbury Road by two further
painters, Marcus Stone on the south side in 1876 at the present
No. 8 and Luke Fildes on the north at No, 11 ]n 1877. Fildes
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lived here until his death in 1927. Both these houses are par-
ticularly attractive examples of the domestic style of Norman
Shaw, the leading British architect in that field in the later 19th
century.

Ricardo, was responsible for the last
Nos. 15 and 17, Melbury Road, which
4. They are included for their architec-
for any associations with occupants of

Other artists who lived in Melbury Road were the Sculptor,
Thomas Thornycroft at No. 2, one of a pair of houses which he
built next to Watts, and his son, Sir Hamo, perhaps the more

o for whom Sir John Belcher designed
immediately to the west in 1892, now
building is marked by an L.C.C. blue
again one of a pair, in which William

Holman Hunt lived from 1903 until his death in 1910. None of
these buildings, however, was considered suitable for inclusion
in the present Order.

The foregoing is stated in support of the Council's contention
in making this Preservation Order that these houses, designed by
outstanding architects of the later Victorian Era, form the nucleus
of an area which was the home of many of the most celebrated
artists of that time.

I shall now consider each of the buildings in more detail,
ta_king them in-chronological order of building, and thus starting
with Leighton House.

Leighton House,12, Holland Park Road, Kensington
The principal part of the house which was ûnished in 1866 was

included many people of distinction and taste, Princess Louise, for
example, having commissioned him to redecorate several rooms at
Kensington Palace.

for November 30th, 1866, published a full
new house illustrated by plans, perspective
ails. The account states that theèrection of

for
nts
its

At this time, of course, the Arab hall, the most remarkable
feature of the house had still to be built. The design, as reported in
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the Í8.N.1', consisted of a formal block facing the road, three storeys
high and five windows wide with a central entrance, the rear being
two-storeyed
three bays of t
Airchison in
metrical plan,
moved to the east end of the building.

The style of the earlier part of the house is Aitchison's very
personal version of the current Italianate manner, the later work
being nicely blended with Saracenic detail in cut and moulded brick,
culminating in the domed Arab hall. Red brick is used throughout,
with dressings of Caen stone, and the roofs are slated except for
the dome which is covered with tiles.

The entrance doorway is a simplification of a classical type with
a vestigial architrave flanked by wide margins, and mouldedbrackets
supporting a cornice hood. The low, hipped roof has a widely pro-
jecting cornice with large brackets and carved decoration in semi-
circular panels in the metopes.

The later extension commences to the west with a threeJight
window in the ground storey only. The first storey is largely bliñd,
the gallery it contains being top lit. Below the cornice, which was
once surrounded by a battlemented parapet, is a broad band of

moulded stone band marks the level of the first floor and another

cornice. At the west
pper part forming an
three long windows
small extension with

The plan of the house gives an entrance hall entered behind a
glazed screen at its east end, a small library to the west and a central,
topJit, stair compartment. Beneath the studio is the dining-room and
drawing room whilst an ante-room, between the latter and the
library, gives a fine vista through to the Arab hall. On the first floor
Leighton's own bedroom and dressing room are at the front of the
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house with the topJit picture gallery to the west, and the whole of
the rear is occupied by the studio.

The decoration of the interior is largely classical and Italianate
in inspiration with a certain amount of Saracenic influence even
apart from the remarkably rich Arab hall. There is a lavish use of
fiñe mosaic, marble and ornamental tiles and most of the woodwork
is lacquered black with incised gilt enrichment. Leighton had a
remarkable collection of works of art in his house, some of which
remain as an integral part of the decoration, and a number of well-
known artists collaborated in providing various ornamental details.

The principal feature of the entrance hall is an altar-piece
attributed to Tintoretto, placed in its present position by Leighton.
The library has low, fitted bookcases and a chimney-piece beneath
the window with a simple bolection-moulded surround in green
marble. In the central hãll the stone bottom flight of the staircase
rises behind a colonnade which supports the rear wall of the first-
floor studio. There is a small wooden balcony between the centre
columns highly wrought with elaborate inlaid decoration of a
Saracenic nature. The stair continues in ebonised timber with a
closed string with incised lines and medallions and turned balusters
of uncommon form. The walls above the dado and up to the level
of the first floor are lined with decorative tiles from the middle east
and very fine plain, coloured ones supplied by William Morris's
.associate, the artist-potter William de Morgan. The floor is laid in
an ornamental design in black and white mosaic. A second colonnade
to the west screens the ante-room, similarly decorated, which leatls
to the Arab hall. This is approached between paired Corinthian
columns of brocatello marble with gilded caps, the bases and
answering pilasters being of
transepts are formed beneath p
inset columns. Shaped penden
octagon on which sits the circular dome. The floor continues the
black and white mosaic treatment of the ante-room and staircase
hall and in the centre is a rectangular pool, edged in black marble,
with a single fountain jet. There is a considerable use of richly-
coloured marbles on the walls but the principal decoration is the
splendid collection of tiles, which, with the stained glass and a large
part of the latticed screens to the windows as well as the first-floor
balcony, was brought back f Leighton's
request. The alabaster caps of e carved by
the well-known sculptor Sir Ed in the stone
caps to the larger columns were modelled by Randolph Caldecott.
The frieze to the room, with its gold mosaic background, was
executed to the design of Walter Crane and above this level the
decoration is largely painted.

The other rooms on the ground floor are, by comparison, very
ing-room has a remarkable oakchimney-
columns supporting winged griffins with
with a bracketed cornice. The drawing
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room is more formal with the bow window in one long wall. The
chimney-piece of white marble has a semi-circular opening and inlaid
decoration of a formal pattern and naturalistic grass design.

On the first floor the landing is open to the picture gallery which
is divided by a pair of Corinthian columns into two compartments,
each lit by an octagonal lantern and from the first compartment the
latticed balcony looks down into the Arab hall. At the front of the
house a small lobby leads to Leighton's bedroom and dressing room,
both of which are quite plain. The studio at the rear, with its large
projecting window, has a semi-dome to the eastern apse and at the
western end the ceiling is coved behind a screen of columns which
replace a gallery on cast-iron supports. Above the corniced doorcase
are inset plaster casts from the Parthenon frieze and from Michel-
angelo's tõndo of the Virgin and Child at Burlington House, whicË
were placed in position for Leighton. The two chimney-pieces are of
black marble, one being inset with decoration in coloured marbles
and the other, rather curiously, being similarly decorated with
oriental dishes.

I should like to read the following letter from Mr. Trenchard
Cox, Director of the Victoria and Albert Museum at South Ken-
sington: -
"Dear Sir,

Sectíon 29, Town and Country
Planning Act,1947

Thank you for your letter of November 8th, in which you ask
for the opinion of the Victoria and Albert Museum on the import-
ance of the eastern tiles incorporated in the interior decoration of
Leighton House.

First, I will quote from the official Guide to the Collection of
Tiles in the Victoria and Albert Museum, published this year (page
24). On Syrian (Damascus) tiles of the lTth century the Keeper of
the Department of Ceramics writes as follows:

'There is little charm of detail in the large panels that must
have been a standard furnishing in Syrian houses of the late 16th
and 17th centuries, but their appearance in a reconstructed
setting at Leighton House in Holland Park Road, London, shows
that their massed effect can be attractive.'
At Leighton House, in addition to the more or less complete

Damascus panels, there are several single tiles made at Isnik in
Turkey during the l6th century. These are of some importance.

We consider that the tiles at Leighton
being set in the wall in a manner which is
Museum. They are complemented by the c
lattice work which dates from the 17th century. Thus, the interest
of the tiles and woodwork lies, perhaps, to even a greater extent, in
the setting than in their individual historical or aesthetic importance;
and we would regard Leighton House as a rewarding placè to visit

23



for anyone whose interest had been aroused by seeing individual
Near Eastern objects shown here under Museum conditions.

I should add that some of the tiles at Leighton House are by
William de Morgan, an associate of William Morris, and an
important figure in the history of English 19th century design.

There is no objection to our opinion being quoted at the public
enquiry on January 4th,1961.

I am sending a copy of this letter to the Town Clerk, Kensington
Borough Council,

Yours faithfully,
(Sgd.) Trenchard Cox,

Director and S ecretary."

No.6, Melbury Road

No. 6, also known as Little Holland House after the earlier

Frederick Pepys Cockerell, 1833-1878, was the son of a famous
father, Professor Charles Robert Cockerell, one of the most dis-

years of the l9th
45 but he had by
to his credit. His

disappeared, were the Freemasons'Hall in Gr"", ö:L"rl&ln:"":
the old Gallery of the Society of Painters in Water Colours, in Pall
Mall. He had previously done work for 'Watts and it seems that
there was a considerable degree of understanding between the two
men: certainly the plan of the house was entirely dictated by Watts,s
requirements.

lay to the west of the entrance and in 1881 this became the ante-room

redecorations to the house after Watts's second marriage in 1886,
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and
seg'
ped-
mall

annexe with a entrance
with a stone arc ng ând a
The small studi a nearly
cresting to its p but simi

end of the room, with the enriched four-centred arch and decorated

same date.
There is no evidence that the other rooms in the house have been

much altered but they do not contain decoration or fittings of
particular interest.

"Tower House," No.9, Melbury Road
William Burges, A.R.A., who lived from 1827-1881 can be

classed with Bu st gifted
and orþinal go thé age
of seventeen he in 1849
he moved to that of Mathew Digby Wyatt; but he was soon absorbed
into the main stream of the gothic revival and in 1856 eained the
first award in the international competition for Lille Cath-'edral. His
output was small, in inverse proportion to the amount of care he
took with all his buildings and unlike the other three architects men.
tioned he excelled at domestic work.

Two cathedrals were actually built to his design, those of Bris-
bane and St. Fin Barre's, Cork, besides a numbeiof churches and
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Castell Cock a few miles away. His work on these two castles may
be compared.to the famous medieval reconstructions of the French
architect ViolletJe-Duc at Carcassonne and the Chateau of
Pierrefonds but they were far more than mere archaeological exer-
cises. No domestic interiors in the middle ages were as rich as those
of Cardiff Castle and even in the nineteenth century one would have
expected that such costly materials, ûne craftsmanship and elaborate
ornament could only have been afforded by an exceptionally rich
man, were it not that the architect's own house is equally splendid, if
on a considerably smaller scale. This is not, however, a building
superbly constructed and decorated merely for show, but also a
sensitively and conveniently planned house to live in and of all his
works Burges is said to have regarded it the most highly. Certainly
the present occupants have valued it sufficiently to have carefully
conserved the original decoration during the twenty-five years or
more that they have lived there and they have even gone to the
trouble of buying back some of the original furniture which Burges
designed for his own use.

The style of the house is essentially that of late medieval French
domestic architecture and the materials used are a hard red brick
with extensive stone dressings, the steep, gable-ended roof being
covered with greyish slates. There are two principal storeys above
a basement and the roof contains a garret. The three main living-
rooms form an "L" shaped block with a square entrance hall in the
angle, facing south and east and in front of it a circular staircase
tower with a conical roof and a small gabled wing. An "L" shaped
double porch serves both the main entrance and the garden door
behind it, The ground and first floors of the house are marked by
storey and sill bands and in general there are moulded stone dress-
ings to the eaves and gables of the roof, the chimney stacks being
finished in moulded brick. The larger windows have stone mullions
and transoms with square or cusped heads to the lights but some of
the smaller openings are arched in brick or have plain stone lintels.
The windows to the basement have heavy segmental arches and are
entirely without stone dressings. The porch is of stone, its square
piers having carved caps and the deep entablature an arcaded cornice
with a brick parapet in front of the large window, lighting the upper
part of the hall. At the rear, the pair of windows to the library with

are divided by
drawing-room

on moulded stone brackets. of the three dorme, *i"d3;ti ;ilf""*?l
of the house the large central one has a high, arched gable.

The remarkably intact state of the interior has already been
noted. The presence of a certain amount of the original furniture is
scarcely relevant to the present enquiry except where it forms an
integral part of the building as, for example, in the library, with its
elaborate fitted bookcases. But there is an extraordinarily lavish use
of painted decoration, stained glass and carving, often of figure
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subjects and of a very high quality and there is a particular theme in
the decoration of each room in the house. On the two.main floors the
ceilings are beamed with supporting corbels of stone and the win-
dows are recessed beneath broad segmental arches. The chimney-
pieces are generally of the medieval type with a tapered hood and
several are of fantastic elaboration.

The entrance porch, the inner part of which is enclosed by glazed
screens, has a mosaic floor with Burges's own dog, Pinkie, depicted in
the centre. The front door and also that leading to the garden are
faced with bronze, the panels modelled with figures in relief.

The hall, rising through two storeys, has another mosaic floor
with a representation in the gothic manner of Theseus and the
Minotaur. Opposite the entrance is a large fireplace and the doorways
to the living-rooms are square headed with a roll moulding
ornamented by pairs of lion masks. Two pointed archways, divided
by a marble column with a carved cap and base, lead to the stone
staircase which rises in a "LJ" shaped compartment round a solid
core. A gallery at first-floor level runs across two sides of the hall.
The dining-room at the front of the house has its walls lined with
Devonshire marble for two-thirds of their height, above which is a
frieze of figures executed in glazed tiles. The decorations illustrate
Chaucer's "House of Fame" and on the upper part of the marble
chimney-piece is a seated flgure of Fame himself, supported by a
trumpeting angel, executed in bronze with ivory hands and head and
sapphire eyes. The ceiling, reputed to be of enamelled iron, has a
central figure representing the sun surrounded by a circle of planets
and the signs of the Zodiac. The theme of the library decoration is
appropriately enough literature and the liberal arts. Roundels in the
ceiling contain idealised portraits of the founders of the different
systems of theology and law and the doors of the enclosed bookcases
are painted with a series of figures relating to the visual arts and
representing the letters of the alphabet. The chimney-piece has a
plain surround of Mexican onyx to the opening but the upper part
is of Caen stone, elaborately carved and painted, and takes the form
of a medieval castle with lively figures in front of it, the whole
intended to represent the dispersal of the parts of speech at the time

sits in a turreted and gabled

i,il':,f l1iå?,ä0"',iå?'J':1

A wide .rttäf
and a cent into
room. This pain
of which was "the tender passion of love". But the three windows
have a marble lining to their deep reveals and ball-flower enrichment
to their segmental arches, much of the stained glass survives and
there are built-in cupboards with painted doors on each side of the
chimney-piece which is perhaps the most beautiful in the house. It
is of Caen stone, carved and painted as before, and illustrates
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pr.oductions". Butte¡flies are painted in a formal pattern on the
cgiling and.frogs and mjce ap-qear on the beams. Theìehtively plain
chimney-piece is of red marble.

. What was Burges's otvn bedroom above the library, with a
bathroom en suite, is decorated with .,the sea and its inhâbitants".

Nos. 8 and 11, Melbury Road
Richard Norman Shaw, lg3l-

d Street's office where he suc_
The houses are in the so-called
to, which was developed in the
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No.8

On the garden front the eaves cornice is of moulded brick and
two high chimney-stacks rise through the roof which has pedimented
dormers lighting the garret storey. There is a long winãow to the
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painted tiles. The eitqg'
tormed beneath the dado.
In other rooms are Pieces
set with blue and white tiles.

No.ll
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alùte LTth century type. The principal rooms are at a slightly higher
level than the hall and those at the rear are little altered, all having
beamed ceilings and decoration of a generally mid-l8th century
character. The dining-room has an enriched moulding to the cornice
and the two-panelled doors have lugged architraves, a pulvinated
frieze and dentil cornice. The elaborate chimney-piece is of walnut
and slips and a similar inlay to the tablet.
The nked by Ionic terms whilst the frieze
has ted with fluting and oval paterae.

The drawing-ro
frieze and cornice.
of paint and has a
frieze having a fest
above which the enriched cornice-shelf breaks forward.

The studio on the floor above now has a false ceiling and is
divided into a number of rooms. Oak panelling is said to survive
behind modern partitions.

The wonderfully varied views of this house to be obtained from
the two arms of Melbury Road and from Ilchester Place show Shaw's
picturesque invention at its happiest, and its corner site makes it of
very special importance in this group.

Nos. 15 and l7 Melbury Road, Kensington
These two houses have the appearance of a single building. There

are three storeys above a high basement, plus a garret in the roof,
and the front is six windows wide, the entrances being set in low
wings approached by covered ways on either side of the walled fore-
court. The general elements of the design are taken from lTth cen-
tury work but this splendid exterior has a distinctive character typical
of its author with his faith (to quote Pevsner), in the use of imperish-
able materials and colour in the modern street: the window openings
have segmental arches with bars to the sliding sashes which have
flush frames and are furnished with hinges and louvered shutters.
The hipped and tiled roof has a heavy timber eaves-cornice with
plain brackets, dormer windows and tall, plain chimney stacks.

The walls are faced with glazed ox-blood brick, there are
moulded sill-bands of Portland stone and an enriched storey-band
at second floor level with stone strip-pilasters framing the top storey.

The forecourt is entered by three round-arched gateways, the
two side ones leading into the covered ways which have decorated
iron supports of an "arts and crafts" character. The steps to the
front areas are treated in an elaborate manner with stone balustrad-
ing inscribed with the architect's name and the date of building. The
forecourt is paved with large bufi quarry tiles and there is a very wide
sunken area at the back of the house which is similarly treated.
The rear elevation has three gables to the roof instead of an eaves-
cornice.

Internally, the conversion of the two houses into flats has robbed
the building of some of its original character, but there are still items
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piece of marble and alabaster, with a panel of decorative tiles and a
mosaic hearth.

by
tec

In the words of the Victorian Society's letter to
'are a remarkable monument to the art-life of the
to an aspect of the social history of Kensington".

Willis, represent-
ing oad, in which the
Est orthY as the other

had rich historical associations
art of the block.
acting on behalf of the Holland
of Kensington, Mr. Barker said

he took pleasure in looking at Leighton House from the outside. He
referred to it as "a building without parallel".

Mr. Stockdale called Mr. lVilliam Bishop, F.R.I.C.S., of Drivers
Jones & Co., the managing agent of the Holland Park Estate. He
said that the Estate's objection to the Preservation Order was in
principal, because there is no proposal to demolish any of the
þremises included in the order, except for No. 6, Melbury Road,
the former home of G. F. Watts.

Mr. E. Maxwell Fry, architect, was also called on behalf of the
Holland Park Estate, referred to Leighton House as "architecturally
extremely disjointed". It had rather "painful and unpleasant marks
of the owner and of the times". He thought most of the houses con-
cprned 'rworthy of preservation", but thought that No. 6 Melbury
Road had very little architectural merit.

Mrs. Diana Paul, a member of the Kensington Council, was then
called. She said that the Preservation Order was "unjustified and
unnecessary". Kensington Council had no intention of demolishing
or changing the use of Leighton House. The rumour that they in-
tended to do so, she thought, had been started by the Kensington

The Kensington Society opened their case by calling the distin-
guished architect, Sir Albert Richardson, a former Presldent of the

No. 9 was the best example of the work of William Burges, the
architect, "I think it would be a disaster and a comment-on the
general decline if it were touched. Already the public dislikes
the rubbish that is being erected and when intelligente reigns once
more, people will realise the importance of these Victorian houses.
They are part of the national heritage".

were insufficient studios in Kensington and the shortage was tending
to drive afists away.

The Kensington Society concluded its case by presenting the
tollowing statement to the Inspector.

Several years ago the Kensington Society asked the London

ance as a group expressing the taste of well-known artists of the late
Victorian period.

Council has objected to a Building
Pre n these houses. The Society deplores
the Borough Council and would like to
submit the following observations for the consideration of the
Minister.

Melbury Road and its region represents a development which
took place in the 1870's on the site of an old farm house and the old
Little Holland House and its grounds. In 1870 Lady Holland's cir-
cumstances were in that entanglement which led to her making over
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Society.
This suggestion,

with by Mr. Money,
which is wholly untrue, was immediately dealt
Counsel for the Society.
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the administration of the whole of the Holland Park property to Lord
Ilchester. An agreement of 1871 forbade any building lease that
would "interfere with the beauty and enjoyment of the house", but
left Lord Ilchester free to dispose of the Little Holland House por-
tion of the estate, and this he quickly marked down for development,
planning a new street, Melbury Road.

G. F. watts built the flrst house named it
Little Holland House (now No. 6). ady built
for himself a house in Holland Park of Watts

house on hitect William Burges spent
many yea e cannot be considered other-
wise-than uses in London, as interesting
as Leighton House in its expression of its builder's remarkable
personality.

For an idea of the atmosphere of these houses in the palmy days
of the Victorian artist, oné must search among the "Illustrated
fnterviews", in the early numbers
which Eliot and Fry's PhotograPhs
The houses in Melbury Road were
tects for celebrated artists and form t
the centre of the artistic world of the 1870's.

Leighton House in as fo
1896) the home of Lo It w
and erected under the Geo
That part of the house known as the Arab Hall was begun in 1877^

and fiñished in 1879, and is remarkable as being solely the creation of
this artist's mind; it embodies the spirit of Eastern art, but without
slavish imitation.

rtions, wealth and beauty of colour and
orn clever and masterly blending of materials,
old Western. The Eastern tiles (mainly 15th

Damascus, Cairo,
of his friends, Sir

urton. The modern
e stained glass and

lattice wood work came from Damascus and Cairo, whilst the marble
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On the first floor are studios, and a well-lit picture gallery, the
latter being one of two built in 1929 and the gift of the late Mrs'
Henry Periin. The Large studio is available for concerts, meetings,
etc., and the gallery ideally suited for exhibitions.

The legal history of Leighton House is a long and complicated
one (see Report of the Libraries Committee which appears in the
Council's Minutes for 1950).

The freehold of the property originally belonged to Lord Ilchester
who, in 1877, leased it to the late Lord Leighton. This lease, with
two others under which small portions of the grounds are held, all
expire in 1963.

By 1925 the leasehold interest had become vested in a Mrs.
Russéll Barrington as a trustee and was maintained by a voluntary
organisation known as The Leighton House Association, as a
memorial to the late Lord Leighton, and used as a centre of art,
music and literature.

As the funds of the Association were not sufficient to meet cur-
rent expenditure, the trustees offered to transfer Leighton House,
together with its contents, to the Council as a gift if its character and
general purpose were maintained.

The Council eventually decided to purchase the freehold interest
from the Il'chester Estate for the sum of f2,750, and to take an assign-
ment of the leasehold interest from Mrs. Russell Barrington. Legal
difficulties were then encountered by s Mrs.
Barrington was a trustee it was not ve the
property to the Council without the Com-
missioners which the Council were lo trol of

Charity Commissioners to the free transfer. This was obtained on
condition that the premises were used for the purposes of the Lib-
raries Acts until the leases run out in 1963.

The Council are limited in their freedom of action by covenants
which they entered into with the Ilchester Estate when they pur-
chased the freehold interest. These restrictions are: Not to use the
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property without the consent of the Ilchester Estate for any purpose
other than-

(a) Public Library purposes
(b) Private House
(c) Mayoral at-homes or garden parties
(d) Orchestral, Chamber, Vocal or Choral concerts.

In addition, in the event of the Council ever disposing of the
propcrty, the llchester Estate were given an option to re-purchase at
the then current market price which is to be settled, in the event of
dispute, by arbitration.

In 1928, certain additions to the house were provided by Mrs.
Henry Perrin and presented to the Council. The only condition
imposed on the gift was that, so long as the additions known as The
Perrin Galleries were held by the Council for the purpose of the
Libraries Acts, specimens of sculpture of the late Miss Perrin, and
certain exhibits of pottery donated by Mrs. Perrin, should be
exposed for permanent exhibition and a prohibition against disposal
of the articles so presented was also imposed.

In t947 the Libraries Committee considered the future of
Leighton House and, in view of the legal restrictions on a change of
user, recommended that the premises, when restored, should be
used for the undermentioned purposes:

(l) Stimulating and developing general cultural interests of
a musical, artistic and educational character

(2) As a centre for the, at that time, Arts and Civic Society.

In short, the Council's freedom of action with regard to Leighton
House is severely curtailed but, when the leases fall in in 1963, the
Council will be in a position to put the property to any use they see
fit, subject only to the necessity of obtaining the prior consent of the
Ilchester Estate to any change from the purpose for which the pro-
perty was originally bought. If the Council wishes to dispose of the
property the Ilchester Estate must be given an option to re-purchase.

The fact that the Kensington Borough Council objects to the

sometime after 1963.
The Kensington Society is of the opinion that Leighton House

should be preserved for the following reasons-

1. It is a unique treasure house---containing objects of rare value.
It would be monstrous to suggest that these treasures should
be distributed among the art galleries and museums. The
house where a great man lived and did the work which made
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him famous is also of great interest. For example, visitors to
Antwerp are more pleased with the Musee Plantin than any
other of the many famous sights in that most interesting town,
Christopher Plantin lived there, and the house where he car-
ried on his trade of a printer can be seen. The authorities of
Antwerp were wise in their generation. They have provided

town. London is sadly lacking in such
e more reason why this particular one
It is the expression of a great artist's

personality and probably no more perfect artist's house is to
be found anywhere.

2. It has been enjoyed and appreciated by many thousands from
all parts of the world.

3. The famous "Arab Hall", staircase and corridors contain
not only the largest collection of Eastern enamels of the best
period in t n extensive and superb example' of Walter art, likewise sculpiured capitals
of column Sir Edgar Boehm.

4. It has become a live centre in the Borough for cultural
activities of all kinds. Lord Leighton's studio affords ideal
surroundings and perfect acoustic qualities for concerts, lec-
tures and meetings. There are 400 bookings a year, and some
of these are for exhibitions lasting several weeks. Local
history and other exhibitions of popular appeal have been
organised and an exhibition of local artists has become an
annual feature. No provision has been made in the new
Central Library for exhibitions. University extension courses
and other lectures on the arts are held during the winter
months,

5. It is a public memorial of world-wide interest to one of the
greatest Presidents the Royal Academy ever had-to a great
artist, painter and sculptor.

6. The idea of Leighton House not being retained as a centre
of art, as it has been for so many years, would not only be a
local but a national reproach.

The Kensington Society believes that Leighton House and the
small group of houses in Melbury Road call for special consideration
and have a very strong claim to be considered as an architectural
entity. The fact that some of the studio houses in Melbury Road
have been converted into flats has in no way destroyed their aichitec-
tural merit. The Society feels that it would be iniquitous to demolish
these houses and earnestly hopes that effective steps will be taken to
prevent such a contingency.

Many local residents gave their reasons why they approved the
Preservation Order.
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Mrs. Drysdale, Secretary of the Addison Road Society and wife
of a Kensington Borough Councillor, wished to make it known that
Kensington Council lüere not unanimous in opposing the Preserva-
tion Order. "The changing scene is very upsetting in this unique
garden area of Kensington," she said. "The Ilchester Estate do not
care about the appearance of their houses."

Finally, counsels for the Holland Park Estate, Parway Estate
and Kensington Borough Council concluded their cases against the
Preservation Order and counsels for the London County Council
and the Kensington Society gave the case for the Order.

As we go to press we learn with very much regret that the
Minister has decided not to confirm the Preservation Order.

The following is a copy of the letter conveying the Minister's
decision.

Ministry of Housing and Local Government,14hitehall.

August 30th, 1961.

I am directed by the Minister of Housing and Local Government
to say that he has considered the report of his Inspector, following the
Local Inquiry held by him at lhe Town Hall, Kensington, on April
19rh, 1961.

The Inspector says that Melbury Road has historical associations
with persons who, in the previous century, being of consequence in
the sphere of the visual arts, materially influenced matters of taste of
that time. He considers that, with the exception of No. 6 Melbury
Road, the properties included in the Building Preservation Order are
all exceptionally fine examples of their period, that they are well
preserved, atnd that they are among the best works of notable archi-
tects of the last century, certain of them having very important
historical associations with famous people of that time. As regards
No. 6 Melbury Road, he takes the view that, although this is a build-
ing of architectural quality and historical associations, it has not a
sufficient degree of architectural or historical interest to justify that
part of the Order which relates to it being confirmed. The other
buildings in the Order he considers to be of very special architectural
or historic interest. If there were any doubt concerning this excep-
tional interest he is of opinion that it would be reasonable to adopt
the course of reconsidering the question of a Building Preservation
Order at such time as specific proposals for the material alteration or
demolition of the building arose, but in his view there is no doubt on
the matter. He therefore recommends that the Order be confirmed,
except in so far as it relates to No. 6 Melbury Road.
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Road is not of sufficient architectural or historic interest to warrant
its inclusion in the Order and he notes that this building is the only
one of those in the Order which is at present threatened with demoli-
tion. He considers that it would be premature to assess the claims
to preservation of the other buildings in the Order at the present
time when there are no proposals to demolish or alter them. He has,
therefore, decided not to confirm the Order.

'fhe Minister has no doubt that Nos. 8, 15 and 17 Melbury Road
and No. 12 Holland Park Road should be included in the list of
buildings of special architectural or historic interest for the Royal
Borough of Kensington compiled under section 30 of the Town and
Country Planning Act, 1947, in addition to Nos. 9 and 1l Melbury
Road which are already so included, and he has arranged for an
amendment to the list to be issued forthwith. Should at some future
date proposals be submitted to demolish or alter any of the listed
buildings in any manner which would seriously affect their character,
the claims of the building or buildings in question to preservation
should be appraised in the light of the circumstances then obtaining
and it would, of course, be open to the Council to submit a Building
Preservation Order in respect of any of them.
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A KENSINGTON ECONOMIST

By Rlcueno Brecrsunh¡ (aged 18 years)

John Stuart Mill lived for a number of years in middle life at
18 Kensington Square. Like his neighbours, Thackeray, and John
Richard Green, the historian, his intellectual outlook even when
critical of the contemporary structure of society was characteristic
of the Victorian Age. His vigorous liberalism was in complete
accord with the temper of the English bourgeoisie which, within
Mill's lifetime established itself as the dominant class in the State.
By the time of his death he was revered as the greatest living
English philosopher by the liberal middle class. The British in-
dustrialists of that time were men full of ruthless energy, with the
self-confrdence that comes with success and newly-acquired power.
Following the Philosophical Radicals, Bentham, Ricardo and
James and J. S. Mill, they believed in competition as a motive force
of progress and were impatient of anything
sity. They believed in Free Trade and a I
franchise to include the middle class. The
theories of J. S. Mill were a faithful reflection and justification of
these concrete demands of the industrial bourgeoisie. Mill's belief
in freedom of thought attractive
to a class struggling to ent of the
country. The bias aga in Mill in
his stress on the freedom of the individual, was natural at a time
when the monarchy and the aristocracy were still clinging on to
the reins of government. This bias was held in check, however,
by the hope that government would soon be a monopoly of the
middle class. In economics, Mill largely accepted the theories of
Ricardo. These have been the source of capitalist economic
theory. Mill, however, adopted a form of Fourier-ist Socialism
and modified Ricardian theory to incorporate this element.
Phalansteries, or workers' co-operatives, took the place of capitalist
firms in Mill's conception of society, but competition was to remain.

The substructure of Mill's opinions remained always that which
had been laid down for him in youth by the dominating personality
of his father. His education was conducted by his father who held
very definite opinions on what subjects should be taught to a grow-
ing boy. He was set to learn Greek at the age of three and Latin
at seven. At twelve years he began to read logic, reading all that
Aristotle had to say on the subject, several of the schoolmen and
Hobbes. At thirteen his father taught him all political economy.
As recreation from this arduous course of work he used to walk
with his father on Bagshot Heath, being instructed that he must not
think the syllogistic argument silly, and taught how to reduce
arguments to correct syllogistic form. The defect of this vigorous
education was that Mill was never able wholly to escape from the
dominating influence of his father. Indeed, his fundamental beliefs
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practical evil resulting from it.
The kernel of Mill's outlook was his empiricism which he

inherited from the Empiricist School of Locke, Berkeley and Hume,
and which had been inculcated by his father. He believed that

ass etent to explaini: äÌ"':s3å:iå::
four" as a generalisationwt?om experience. 
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the development of deductive logic which began with Boole's "Laws
of Thought" in 1854. Indeed, everything Mill has to say in his
"Logic" about matters other than inductive inference is perfunctory.
He states, for example, that propositions are formed by putting
together two names, one of which is the subject and the other the
predicate. This important error has been avoided by modern logic.
What Mill has to say on the subject of names, was quite inadequate
and was not as good as what had been said by Duns Scotus and
William of Occam. Mill's intellectual reputation has been much
inflated, mainly because of the very fact that his outlook was so in
accord with the educated middle class for which he was writing.

Mill's law of causation, which was considered at one time his
greatest achievement, is not one which is employed in mathematical
physics. Indeed, Mill could have realised the fallacy had he been
acquainted with the calculus. The laws of physics never state, as
Mill's causal laws do, that A is always followed by B. They assert
only that when A is present, there will be certain directions of
change; since A also changes, the directions of change are themselves
continually changing. The notion that causal laws are of the form
"A causes B" is altogether too atomic and could never have been
conceived by anybody who had imaginatively apprehended the
continuity of change. Moreover, Mill gives as proof of his law
induction by simple exploded.

Mill's most ori Liberty".
Indeed. liberalism a very little
since Mill's work. Liberty",
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which may be taken as representative of modern liberalism, is little
more than a re-definition of Mill's ideas. Mill argues convincingly
in favour of freedom of thought and of speech. He points out that
the heresy of one age frequently vindicates itself in the next and that
by summarily suppressing an opinion you may thereby be suppress-
ing the truth. Truth is usually not the sole possession of either side
in a controversy, but is shared in by both sides. Mill's outlook, how-
ever, remained unaffected by developments in Continental philo-
sophy. H f Hegel's concept of freedom as co-
operation State to master their environment.
Mill's poli progressive in his own time since it
concerned itself with the most important political problem facing
the middle class at their stage of economic development. When
man's material needs are satisfied, ability to develop his mind freely
becomes most important. In emphasising liberty of speech and
action at a time when considerable restrictions remained on free-
dom, Mill was concentrating on essentials. Once Mill's ideas are
accepted, however, other political problems about how we are to use
our liberty become more important. This is why the attempt by
certain modern liberals to erect Mill's theories into a complete
political philosophy is unsatisfactory. While praising Mill, we should
remain conscious of his necessary limitations.

CONSTITUTION OF TIIE KENSINGTON SOCIETY

l. The name of the Society shall be The Kensington Society.

3. Members. Members shall be Life or Ordinary.
4. Subscriptions. m subscription

of flO 10s. O nimum annual
subscription of lst each year.

5. The Council. The Council shall consist of not more than
thirty members. They shall be elected by the Executive
Committee.

6. The Officers. The Officers of the Society shall be the President,
the Vice-Presidents, the Hon. Secretary and the Hon. Treasurer.

7. The Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall
consits of not more th¿n twelve members and the Hon.
Secretary and Hon. Treasurer. The Chairmarçof the Executiv
Committee shall be elected annually by the^members of th
Executive Committee at their first meeting after the Annual
General Meeting.

8. The Executive Committee shall be the governing body of the
Society. It shall have power to (i) Make by-laws; (ii) Co-opt
members and fill vacancies on the Executive Cornmittee that
may arise for the current year; (iii) Take anj, steps they may
consider desirable to further the interests and objects of the
Society.

A Quorum of the Executive Committee shall consist of not
less than five members.

Not less than three Executive Committee Meetings shall
be convened in any one year.

9. Annual General Meeting. An Annual General Meeting, of
which 28 days' notice shall be given to members, shall be held
when the Executive Committee shall submit a Report and an
audited Statement of Accounts to the previous September 30th.

10. Election of Officers and Members of the Executive Committee.
All members of the Society shall be eligible for election as
Officers of the Society or Members of the Executive Com-
mittee. Nominations must be sent to the Hon. Seòretary, duly
signed by a proposer and seconder, within 14 days of the date of
the Annual General Meeting. If more nominations are received
than there are vacancies, voting shall be by ballot at the Annual
General Meeting.
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lI. Alterations ol Rules. No rule shall be altered or revoked except
at a General Meeting of the Society. No motion shall be deemed
carried unless it has been agreed to by not less than two-thi¡ds
of those present and voting.

12.

mittee setting forth fairly and impartially a summary of the
arguments for and against such course and the views of tbe
Executive Committee thereon.

f Mernber of the Executive Committee.
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THE KENSINGTON SOCIETY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 19ó0.óI

317 3 E

2970

1959160 INCOME f, s. d. € s. d.

t37l Baluce at lst October, 1960 Ê386 I 8
Subscriptions-

31 Life 67 5 0
358 Amual ... 377 2. 6

othe¡ Incom* 
444 7 6

18 Profit fiom Sale ofCb¡istmas Cards 28 19 8
2 fnterest on Ba¡k Deposit Äccount 2

Interot on Post Office savings Bank.4 Accounts 9 15 0
38 t4 t0

Norfolk Hous,
Laurenæ Poùntney Hill,

Londoo, E.C.4.

23rd October, 1961.

1959160 EXPENDITURE f, s. d. € s. d.

London Meetings-
{,51 Hire of Hall for Annual General Mætings

and Public Mætings 5 5 0

Cost of Public Meetings l0 0 0
P¡intiDg, Typrng aad Stationery other th¿n

Public Meetings 208 0 E

Postages and Telephone Calls other than
Public Meetings 79 6 O

Bank charges and Cheque Books 3 0 0
Planfng Træs ...
Donations 4 4 O

SundryExpenses 7 8 0

Coach Visits-
Net Cost of Hire, M€ls, etc.

lalances at 30th September, 1961
cari€d forward-

MartiDs Bank, Limired 66 O 4
Post Ofñce Savings Bank

Aæounts-
Life Subæriptions e4O4 7 O

Prize Fund 52 l3 O

81

183

39
4

l0
J
5

22

329
5t

a

45730
52304

t7E4 r8ó9 il 0 f784 [869 11 0

We have
the same

prepared the above A@unts froD the Books and Vouchers kept by Martins BaDk Limited. Kensington High Stræt, London, Vy'.8 Brancb, and certify
to be in aæo¡dance therewitb.
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WRIGHT, STEVENS & LLOYD,
C ha¡ te¡ed A cco untønts.
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